Public Document Pack

Licensing (Hearings) Sub-

Committee
Agenda

Date: Thursday, 27 April 2017
Time: 12.30pm
Venue: City Hall College Green, BS1 5TR

Distribution:

Councillors: Harriet Clough, Richard Eddy and Mike Langley

Copies to: Sarah Flower, Abigail Holman, Carl Knights, Anne Nugent (Legal Officer), Sarah Sharland
(Legal Officer) and Ashley Clark

Issued by: Norman Cornthwaite, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS

Tel: 0117 92 22237

E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Date: Wednesday, 19 April 2017

www.bristol.gov.uk



mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee - Agenda

Agenda

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 3 - 4)

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
3. Declarations of Interest

4. Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on 215t April 2017.

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 26t
April 2017.

5. LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISONS) ACT 1982
APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL
ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE MADE BY REEDBED LTD IN
RESPECT OF PREMISES TRADING AS CENTRAL CHAMBERS, 9-11
ST STEPHENS STREET, BRISTOL, BS1 1EE.

To consider an application for the renewal of the Sexual (PagesS5 -27)
Entertainment Venue (SEV) licence in respect of premises trading
as Central Chambers, 9-11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE.



mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 1

www.bristol.gov.uk

Licensing Public Information Sheet

Inspection of Papers - Local Government

(Access to Information) Act 1985

You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.

You can also inspect papers at the Brunel House Reception, St.George’s Road, Bristol, BS1 5UY.

Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment

You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.

Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.

Public Forum

Residents who are affected by the business of the Committee, may present a petition of submit a
statement at ordinary meetings of the Licensing Committee and at Licensing Sub-Committee meetings.
Petitions, questions and statements presented to the Licensing Sub-Committee can be received only
in respect of hearings already decided and licence applications not subject to a hearing.

The petition or statement must relate to the terms of reference and role and responsibilities of the
Committee or Sub-Committee concerned.

Further information on representations is available from the Licensing Office (tel: 0117 9142500) or
from Democratic Services.

Your submission will be sent to the Committee and statements, questions and answers will be
available in the meeting room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it

to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or Democratic Services Section, Brunel House St Georges Road
Bristol BS1 5UY. The following requirements apply:

e The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
e The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.

Please see www.bristol.gov.uk and the ‘How to Have Your Say’ pdf for the parameters of each

individual Committee and what will happen to your submission.



http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/138133/bc-how-to-have-your-say-at-public%20meetings.pdf/71c6217a-950d-408d-b863-948f383bcda6

www.bristol.gov.uk

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.

By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated. This information will also be made
available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a public record
(available from Democratic Services).

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.

Process during the meeting:

e Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.

e There will be no debate on statements or petitions.

e The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.

e Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions.

e [f there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.

e |f you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.



http://www.bristol.public-i.tv/site/

Agenda Item 5

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL
LICENSING COMMITTEE
27 APRIL 2017

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISONS) ACT 1982
APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE
LICENCE MADE BY REEDBED LTD IN RESPECT OF PREMISES TRADING AS
CENTRAL CHAMBERS, 9-11 ST STEPHENS STREET, BRISTOL, BS1 1EE.

Report of the Director of Neighbourhoods and City Development

Purpose of Report

1.

To seek consideration of an application for the renewal of the Sexual
Entertainment Venue (SEV) licence in respect of premises trading as Central
Chambers, 9-11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE.

Background

2.

The Council has adopted the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982, as amended; therefore, subject to limited exceptions and exemptions, or in
the absence of a waiver, premises offering relevant entertainment require a SEV
licence to operate in the City of Bristol.

There is a presumption in the legislation that applications for a licence will be
granted unless there is a statutory ground for refusal. Some refusal grounds
require the Council to refuse an application (mandatory grounds for refusal) and
some grounds enable the Council to refuse an application but do not require the
Council to refuse (discretionary grounds for refusal).

Where a licence is granted any standard conditions in regulations made by the
Council will automatically be imposed unless expressly excluded or varied by the
Council. The Council, through this committee, has made regulations and has also
adopted policy to facilitate consideration of applications. Guidance is provided to
the committee in subsequent paragraphs of this report.

The applicant states that relevant entertainment is to be:

“Fully nude striptease on stage, fully nude live stage shows, fully nude pole
dancing, fully nude lapdancing.”

The proposed relevant entertainment to include live performance, live displays of
nudity, male exposure of the pubic area, genitals and anus, female exposure of
nipples, pubic area, genitals and anus. A copy of the previous SEV licence is
attached for member’s information at Appendix A.

A copy of the location map is attached as Appendix B. A copy of the plan of the
premises layout is attached as Appendix C.

A copy of the company logo is attached as Appendix D. Copies of the house rules
and code of conduct for darBers ag attached as Appendices E and F
respectively. age

Page 1 of 10



8. The applicant has given additional information which they wish the Council to take
into account when considering this application. This is attached at Appendix G.

9. Observations and objections

In considering this application the Council must have regard to any observations
submitted to them by the Chief Officer of Police and any objections of which notice
has been sent to them under paragraph 15 of the adopted legislation. Paragraph
15 provides that:

“Any person objecting to an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a
licence under this Schedule shall give notice in writing of his objection to the
appropriate authority stating in general terms the grounds of the objection, not
later than 28 days after the date of the application.”

10.This application was made on the 15 September 2016. The last date for
objections was 14 October 2016. A total of ten objections were received within
that period and the committee must have regard to them. The Council must not
disclose the identity of any objectors without their consent.

A copy of all objections, with personal details redacted where appropriate, is
attached at Appendix H.

11.Late Objections

It used to be thought that the legal position was that objections could not be
received and considered after the statutory deadline in consultation, but case law
has now clarified the position that there is discretion to take late objections into
account. A late objector cannot require that their objection be taken into account
however they do acquire the anonymity that objections properly made would
receive. If any late objections were to come forward a copy would be provided to
the applicant so that they would be able to make representations regarding
whether or not the sub-committee should exercise its discretion to consider them.

No objections have been received outside of this period.
12. Observations of the Licensing Enforcement Team.

Licensing Enforcement officers visited the premises in conjunction with Avon and
Somerset Constabulary on 22 October 2016. A check of the Licensing Act 2003
and SEV licences was undertaken, and the DPS and Manager, Carrie Hale was
present. Officers did not identify any compliance issues at this visit. A request was
made for copies of the CCTV, which was produced to the licensing authority.
Upon viewing the footage, officers found no apparent breaches.

13.Observations of the Chief Officer of Police.

The Police have not made any comments in respect of this application at the time
of writing.

14.Equalities Impact Assessment
(i) Before making a decision, section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires that each
decision-maker considers the need to promote equality for persons with the

following “protected characteristgg”'e @ge, disability, gender reassignment,

Page 2 of 10



pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each
decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the need to:

i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act 2010.

i) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and those do not share it. This
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:

- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic.

- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of
people who do not share it (in relation to disabled people, this
includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled
persons' disabilities);

- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which
participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice and
promote understanding.

(i) This duty places an obligation on the Licensing Committee to ensure that the need
to promote equality is taken into consideration with regard to every aspect of its
decision making. This will include the circumstances of each individual
application, the findings of fact once the application has been considered,
including the taking into account of any objections and any response the applicant
may choose to make.

(iii) The following paragraphs identify issues that may be considered relevant to the
determination of the application. It is not intended to be an exhaustive list but
aims to highlight issues that are anticipated to arise in applications for SEV
licences, although it should be born in mind that each application must be
considered on its own merits.

(iv) Suitability of the applicant

The SEV Policy sets out a number of discretionary grounds under which a licence
can be refused. The application process requires details of any convictions held
by the applicant to be made known to the Licensing authority. This requirement is
particularly relevant as it is imperative that the licence holder is a suitable person
to hold such a licence. Should any SEV licence be granted a set of robust
conditions will cover all aspects of the operation, including the protection of
workers providing any activity allowed under the licence. In addition to convictions
it is equally important to consider whether the applicant has committed any
relevant offences, for example breaches of any conditions on licences held under
similar regulatory regimes. The applicant’s experience is also an important factor
as the committee needs to be satisfied of the person’s ability to ensure the safety
and wellbeing of performers, employees and members of the public. The
committee also need to be confident of the applicant’s ability to understand and
adhere to any conditions imposed should any licence be granted.

(v) Character of the locality page 7

Page 3 of 10



This venue is located on St Stephens Street adjacent to the main transport hub for
the city centre and is in the heart of Bristol’s night time economy which attracts
higher levels of violent crime than other areas of the city. For this reason, following
requests from the police due to the high levels of alcohol fuelled crime, this locality
has been designated as a Cumulative Impact Area as defined within the Licensing
Act statutory guidance. Members should consider, on the basis of the application
before them, whether this is remains a suitable operation at this particular
location. Factors to take into consideration could include the impact of the
proposal on persons with protected characteristics who may be in the vicinity of
the premises bearing in mind the high footfall at this location.

(vi) The Premises

Members will have had the opportunity to visit the premises and view plans of the
layout. The type of operation undertaken at the premises can reasonably be
described as a lap dancing club and it would not be unreasonable to assume that
the performers at the premises will generally be women. Members are therefore
required to have due regard to the duties described above. In particular members
should be satisfied that the layout of the premises provides a high level of safety
for performers. Consideration should be given to CCTV coverage of the premises
including the quality of the images and the monitoring arrangements. Of equal
importance is the external appearance of the premises. Members need to be
satisfied that any frontages are appropriate and do not undermine the duty to
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant characteristic and
those who do not.

15.Mandatory Grounds of Refusal

A licence shall not be granted:

a) to a person under the age of 18; or

b) to a person who is disqualified by reason of prior revocation of a licence;

c) to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an EEA state
or was not so resident throughout the period of six months immediately
preceding the 4 July 2011,

d) to abody corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA state, or

e) to a person who had, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the
date when the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a
licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the
application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.

16.These are mandatory refusal grounds. Having considered the information
provided through the application process your officers advise that none of these
grounds appear to apply in this case. Members should therefore focus their
considerations on whether any of the discretionary grounds for refusal arise in
respect of this application. These are dealt with in turn in the following paragraphs.

17.Discretionary Grounds of Refusal, paragraph 12(2)(a):

The Council may refuse the grant of a licence on one or more of four statutory

grounds which are referred to in the following paragraphs:

Grounds a) and b):

a) That the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been
convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

b) That if the licence was to be granted the business to which it relates would be
managed by or carried on fopheg@elgafit of a person, other than the applicant,

Page 4 of 10



who would be refused the grant of such a licence if he made the application
himself.

18.The Council’s policy identifies a number of factors that the Council may take into
account in considering the suitability of such persons, these are set out on page 6
of the policy under the heading ‘Discretionary grounds a) and b)’ as follows:
In considering the suitability of those persons referred to in (a) and (b) above the
factors the Council may take into account include:

e relevant experience;

e relevant criminal convictions;

e whether the person has committed relevant offences;

e relevant observations or findings by public authorities, including licensing
authorities, in connection with the conduct of the person or their ability to
manage and control premises;

¢ relevant findings by courts and tribunals in connection with the treatment of
protected groups (within the meaning of the Equalities Act 2010)

¢ information germane to the person’s ability to, among other things:

- ensure the safety and wellbeing of performers;

- ensure the proper protection of the public;

- ensure the suitability of employees, performers and others using the
venue;

- prevent performance by or for those who may thereby be harmed,
including minors;

- understand and adhere to conditions imposed on any licence
granted and ensure they are observed by others on the premises;

- engage constructively with the Council and other relevant regulators

19.The application process requires applicants to provide comprehensive information
about any convictions and a range of other information that may be relevant to
consideration of grounds A and B. In regard to this applicant there is no evidence
of convictions deemed to be unspent under the Rehabilitation Of Offenders Act,
cautions, discrimination cases or pending allegations at the date the application
was made that would cast any doubt on the suitability of the applicant to hold the
licence by reason of having been convicted of an offence or for any other reason.

20.Ground c)
That the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a particular
kind, in the relevant locality at the time the application is determined is equal to or
exceeds the number which the authority considers is appropriate for that locality.

21.The Licensing Committee has previously found that the relevant locality for the

purpose of the Central Chambers premises is the City Centre locality. The full
Licensing Committee has adopted policy on behalf of the Council for the City
Centre locality under which the appropriate number of sex establishments, or of
sex establishments of a particular kind for the City Centre locality is:

Sex shops — 2

Sex cinemas — 0

Sexual entertainment venues (SEV) — 2

22.There are currently two licensed SEV’s in the City Centre locality of which this
renewal application is one. Therefore if the sub-committee follows the Councils
policy this ground for refusal would not arise.

23.Ground d)
That the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard —
(i) to the character of the reldv@@®dlity; or

Page 5 of 10



(ii) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or
(iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall
in respect of which the application is made.

24 .Ground d)(i)
That the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to
the character of the relevant locality.

At first glance this ground might appear to be a repetition of ground c) but the
committee is reminded that whilst ground c¢) decisions concern sex
establishments, or sex establishments of a particular kind, generally, ground d) is
concerned with appropriateness of granting the particular licence applied for
having regard to the relevant locality.

Accordingly, simply because ground c) does not apply to a particular application, it
does not follow that ground d)(i) cannot arise. This is because, if granting what is
sought in this particular application were considered to be inappropriate having
regard to the character of the relevant locality, then this ground may be relied
upon to found refusal notwithstanding that other types of relevant entertainment,
or premises of a different appearance, or in a different part of the relevant locality
etc. may not be deemed to be inappropriate in that same locality.

In other words the test in d)(i) is focussed on the particular application and its
appropriateness in the locality.

25.The adopted policy expects the character of the locality to be considered and the
following factors to be taken into account:
(i) the size and appearance of the premises
(i) their proximity to places where the public congregate for purposes other
than use of the premises, such as bus stops and taxi ranks.
(i) the nature and style of the relevant entertainment that is proposed
(iv) the nature of the clientele it is likely to attract and their number
(v) the duration of the proposed licence / activity
(vi) the manner in which the relevant entertainment is likely to be managed
(vii) the risk of nuisance to others engaged in legitimate activity
(viii) the proposed hours of operation

26.Ground d)(ii).
The use to which other premises in the vicinity are put.

Members will note that this ground refers to vicinity and not locality. Members will
have conducted a site visit prior to considering this report and have the benefit of
that together with information in this report and their own local knowledge to help
in the consideration of the factors the policy expects to be taken into account in
considering this ground, as follows:

Whether premises in the vicinity are put to any of the following uses:

(i) Residential, in particular homes occupied by families

(i) leisure,

(iii) educational establishments

(iv) churches and other places of worship

(v) family friendly facilities

(vi) other sex orientated / adult premises (whether or not they are licensed /
licensable)

(vii) youth clubs

(viii) women’s refuges Page 10

Page 6 of 10



(ix) community centres

(x) parks and other open spaces
(xi) swimming pools

(xii) public transport.

27.Ground d)(iii).
That the grant of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to the layout,
character or condition of the premises in respect of which the application is made.

The policy expects the following to be taken into account:

(i)  Whether the premises are fit for the purpose proposed

(i)  their planning status

(iii) the general appearance to others using the locality

(iv) whether premises are self-contained

(v) means of access and egress, whether shared with other building users (if
any)

(vi) accessibility

(vii) sight lines

(viii) ‘hidden’ areas and other places where effective monitoring may be
hampered

(ix) standard decoration and ‘fit out’

(x) visibility from the street

(xi) facilities for smokers

(xii) facilities for performers (changing, washing, wc, smoking areas, etc) and
whether they are adequately separated from those provided for customers.

APPENDICES

Appendix A Current Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence

Appendix B Locality map

Appendix C Plan of premises

Appendix D Applicant logo to be displayed on the exterior of the premises
Appendix E House rules

Appendix F Code of conduct for dancers

Appendix G Additional information from applicant

Appendix H Objections received

RECOMMENDED:

1. That the sub-committee determine the application after affording a hearing to the
applicant.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The relevant key statutory provisions are reflected in the main body of the report.

1. The sub-committee should consider whether or not any of the grounds for refusal arise
in this case. The report accurately sets out those grounds. It will be a matter of fact and
judgement in respect of each ground whether they may be applied in the particular
application under consideration. Where a discretionary ground is judged to apply in this
application the sub-committee must consider whether or not to exercise its discretion to
rely upon that ground (or grounds) to refuse the application. The applicant must be given
the opportunity to persuade the subcommittee either that the ground is not available in
the particular circumstances of this case or, even if it is, that the council ought not to rely
upon it to decide to refuse this application.

Page 11
Page 7 of 10



2. Subject to acting within the statutory constraints referred to in this report and subject to
adherence to the Council“s own procedure rules the sub-committee is able to set its own
procedure for the conduct of the meeting. As the report makes clear in considering the
application the subcommittee must have regard to any observations submitted to the
Council by the Chief Officer of Police. The legislation does not impose any time limit on
the ability of the Chief Officer to make observations and the Chief Officer of Police is not
limited to objecting.

3. The sub-committee must also have regard to any objections of which notice has been
sent to the Council under paragraph 8(15) of the Third Schedule to the 1982 Act. The
Act requires that an opportunity of appearing before and being heard by a committee or
sub-committee must be afforded to an applicant before refusing to renew a licence.
There is no requirement to allow objectors to be heard although this may be permitted.
Case law makes it clear that in exercising discretion to afford objectors a hearing the
Council must consider the risk of unfairness to the applicant. The meeting should be
conducted as a hearing of the applicant’s case for the grant of a licence and not as an
adversarial contest between the opposing views of the applicants and the objectors. If
hearing from objectors the committee must ensure that the applicant’s opportunity to
deploy all appropriate arguments to the committee remains unimpeded.

It is recommended that before the meeting gets underway the committee chair should set
out the arrangements for enabling objectors to address the meeting and for affording a
hearing to the applicants. Standing orders should be suspended for this part of the
meeting to facilitate this.

4. Case law establishes that an applicant cannot expect that a licence will automatically
be renewed. Within the constraints of the grounds for refusal there is a wide margin of
discretion. Subject to the obligation to give adequate reasons and to have due regard to
its earlier decisions, this subcommittee is entitled to take a fresh look and is not bound in
any way by the views of earlier subcommittees. In order be adequate reasons would
need to be, among other things, intelligible and rational, that is to say properly relevant to
the ground or grounds relied upon for refusal. Guidance on the general principles
applying will be available to the subcommittee throughout the hearing and during
deliberations.

5. The Council is under a duty in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 to have due regard
to the matters set out in relation to equalities when exercising the function of determining
this renewal application. Accordingly Members must have due regard to the need to —

e celiminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited in relevant equalities legislation;

e advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

The protected characteristics are set out in the report

5. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to —

(a) Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic:

(b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different frqma@e negds of persons who do not share it

Page 8 of 10



(c) Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

6. There is no prescribed manner in which the equality duty must be exercised. However,
the Council must have adequate evidence to inform its decision making. This can be in
various forms, including engagement with the public and interest groups and by
gathering details, statistics impact assessments and similar documentary evidence
relevant to the statutory function engaged in this regulatory process.

Michael Bonnick
Legal Officer , Community Litigation Regulatory Team
For Service Director — Legal Services

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background papers: Application and supporting documents.

Contact Officer: Abigail Holman, Senior Licensing Officer
Neighbourhoods and City Development
Telephone: 01173574900

Page 13
Page 9 of 10



Page 14
Page 10 of 10



APPENDIX A

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 13482

Part ll Schedule 3
SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

Bristol City Council
Princess House, Princess Street, Bedminster, Bristol. B53 4AG

Mame, (registered] address, telephone number and email {where relevant) of holder
of licence:
Resdbed Lid, Unit 1, 148 Hanham Road, Kingswood, Bristol B515 8NP

Address of premises:
Central Chambers

8- 11 5t Stephens Street
Biristol

BS1 1EE

The licence is granted for one year commencing on: 16 September 2013
Premises Licence Number: 15035135EV

The hcence is granted on fhe terms, conditions and resiricions set owt in the Schedule of
Conditions.

Description of Permitted Relevant Entertainment
{Relevant entertainment has the meaning given in the Act and Permitted Relevant
Entertainment has the meaning given in regulations referred to in the Schedule of
Conditions)

{i) Full nude [ap dancing

(i)  Full nude striptease on stage

{m)  Fully nude live stage shows

{w}  Fully nude pole dancing

{v}  Topless and fully nude lap dances in a designated area

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

Save where they hawve been expressly excluded or vaned, as particularised in paragraph 1
of this schedule, the bcence is granted subject to the terms, conditions and restrictions
prescribed by the Authorty in regulations ("Standard Conditions®™) and also o any
additional ferms, conditions and restriciions set out in paragraph 2 of this schedule.

Paragraph 1 — Exclusion and variation of Standard Conditions.

Fage 1aof &
1S3 IrEEN

Page 15



1.1 Standard Conditions that have been excluded: Hone
1.2 Standard conditions that have been varied: Hone

Paragraph 2 — Additional terms, conditions and restrictions;
2.1 Relevant entertainment may only take place on the following days and times:
Monday to Sunday 12:00 — 06:20 the following day

22 CCTV.

(i) There shall be clear signage indicating that CCTV eguipment is in wse and recording at
the premises during all trading hours

{ii} If redevant entertainment s specifically provided for an audience of ocne (for example
what is sometimes refemed to as a private dance) the camera must be positionsd and
operated s0 as to ensure that both parties are clearly identifiable from the captured
imapes.

(iii) AN monitors shall be positioned so that custormers may not cbserve images.

(v} That the CCTV system be modemisediupgraded in accordance with the requirements
of Bristol City Councd and the Police by end of Movember 2013.

2.3 Relevant entertainment shall not ncude any word, action or imagery that endorses or
depicts, or might reasonably be taken as endorsing or depicting, or be promoted as
including, any conduct which, i taking place in reality, would amount fo a ciminal offence;
for the awoidance of doubt this imposes a prohibition on any perfomer being cothed in a
school uniform or othenwise attired or presented as being a school student or a child or
being promoted as such in any media.

Signed:

T ¥ Illr

Jonathan Martin
Regulatory Compliance Unit manager

Enclosures

Page 2of &
ASM3ISIAEEY

Page 16



City Council of Brizstol (The Council)

Regulations prescribing standard conditions applicable to licences for
sexual entertainment venues

Made on the; 25 day of Febmuary 2011.

Coming into foree on the: 1 day of July 2011

1. The Coamcil makes these regulations pursuant to its power under paragraph 13 of the
Third Schedule to the Local Government (Miscellansous Provisions) Act 1282 (The Acf’).
2. In these conditions

‘Audience’; "Sexual Entertainment Venuwe': and Relevant Entertainment’; each have the
meaning given in the Act .

'‘Performer’ means any individual who performs or actively participates in Relevant
Entertainment (whether or not they are an employee) and “Perfomance” and

*Performing” shall ke construed accordingly.

'‘Pemitted Relevant Entertanment’ means entertainment falling within the

description specified on the licence as beng permitied at the licensed premises

‘Relevant Offence” means

1. An offence under the Local Govemment (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1882

Schedule 3.

2. A sexual offence, being an offence listed in Part 2 of Schedule 15 to the Criminal Justice
Act 2003, other than the offence mentioned in paragraph 25

(an offence under section 4 of the Sexual Offences Act 1867 (procuring others

to commit homosexual acts));

3. Ewery Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence granted, renewed or transferred by the
Cowncil shall be preswumed to have been so granted, renewed or transfemed subject to the
standard conditions contained in the schedule unless they have been expressly excludsd
or varied by the Councl.

Schedule
A, Only Permitted Relevant Entertainment is authorised wnder this licence.

B. Permitted relevant entertainment may only take place on those parts of the premises as
are identified on the plan annexed to the hcence.

C. Relevant entertainment shall not occur in private rooms, cubicles or other enclosed
areas. For these purposes a room, cubicle or other area is private unless it is completely
open on one side so that actvities within may be supenvised from the extenor.

D. The Councl shall b= prowided with a Code of Conduwet for Performers and Rules to be
observed by members of the audisnce.

E. The Code and Rules referred to in Condition D above shall be brought to the
attention of all performers and members of the audience and reasonable measures shall
be taken to ensure that they are complied with.

F. 1. At no time during the performance may there be any contact betwesn a performer
and a customer. Prior to the performance or at the completion of the performance there
may ke hand-to-hand payment for the performance.

2. At no ime except during the performance may a perfommer or employee be

Page 3aof S
1S3 AEEY

Page 17



unciothed. Immediately following the perfformance, the performer must dress, so that (for
example) the performer may not be unclothed when sesking payment for a performance.
3. Mo periomer or employes may at any time (and whether or not perfoming):
a_ sit or lie on the lap or any other part of any customer,
b. kiss, stroke, fondle, caress or embrace any customer;
C. Engage in any other contact of 3 sexual nature with any customer.
4. In these conditions:
a. “customer” means any person wisiting the premises other than employses or
perfomiers, whether or not they have paid for or intend to pay for senvices provided;
b. “employes” means any person working at the venue whether under a contract of
employment or some ofher contract
c. “unclothed” means when breasts and/or genitals and/or anus are fully or
partially uncovered.
d. “other contact of a sexual nature” means contact which must reasonably be
assumed to be provided solely or principally fior the purpose of sexually
stimulating the customer.

(3. As spon as is reasonably practicable, and in any event within s=ven days, the

Ciouncil shall be notified of any material changs in the management structere, where a
material change means one which is at vanance with the information provided i the meost
recent application for a license, or its renewal or vanation as the case may be;

H. No person shall b= employed or shall perform at the premises who has unspent
convictions for any Relevant Offence;

|. Copies of the license and the conditicns applicable to it shall be displayed on the
premises in a place where it s likely to be seen by every member of the audiencs;

J. The bzensee shall retain contrel over all parts of the licensed premises when used for
Relevant Entertainment;

K. Customers shall be made aware of any charge for admission to the premises, and of
any further charges that may be levied in connection with the provision of Relevant
Entertainment, before being admitted to the premises;

L. There shall be no display either upon or outside of the licensed premises (in such a way
that it is visible on the extenor) of photographs or other images which indicate or suggest
that Relevant Enteriainment s provided upon the premises, with the exception of any
registered trade mark, trading name or frading symbol that has been provided to the
Ciouncil i connection with the most recent application for licence, its renewal or variation
as the case may be;

M. The licensee shall ensure that no area where Relevant Entertamment may taks
place can be viewed from outside the licensed premises at any tims;

M. The beensed premises shall be sufficiently illuminated o ensure that wsable CCTV
images can be captured;

0.1, Performers shall not be permitted to share the following faclities with any
members of the audience and suitable separate provision must be made;
(i} water closet;

Fagefof &
ASMISIEEY

Page 18



{ii} washing facilities;
2. Perfiommers and Auvdience shall not be permitied to share any smoking area
3. Mo Member of the audience shall be pemmitted to enter any changing area
used by Performers

P. All external doors affording access to the licensed premises shall be fitted with 3
device to provide for ther automatic closure and such device shall b= mamntained in good
working order;

. The availabiity of relevant entertainment shall not be marketed or advertised in any of
the following ways:-
{a) by means of personal solicitation in the locality of the licensed premises;
b} by means of leaflefing in the locality;
ic) by means of externally displayed advertisement (such as on billboards) i any
part of the Council's adminisirative area

F. The folowing shall be made available without charge to performers and the
Audience:
Literature and contact names and telephone numbers of crganisations that provide advice
and counselling on matters relating to:-
(i} sexual problems;
{ii} family planning;
(iii} sexually transmitted diseases
(W) rape and sexual assault

5. (i) Mo telephone number, residential address, email address or other information that
may facilitate further contact between performers and members of the Audience is passed
from auwdience to performer, or vice versa; and

{ii] This prohibiticn shall be brought to the attention of all members of the Audience

T. {ij Performers may perform only in accordance with writen confracts, which

define their nghts and cbligations, including terms as to the nature of their

performance and payment. Mo deduction shall be made from such payment unless
permitied by the contract, and no deduction by way of penalty shall be permitted;

(i) Mo relevant entertainment shall be prowided by any perfformer unless sufficient checks
have been made of documents evidencing the performer's age, identity and right to work
in the United Kingdom;

{iii) Copies of all documents refermed to i (i) and (i) above shall be retained for not kess
than 12 months after the last provision of Relevant Entertainment by the said Performer
and shall ke produced to an authorised officer of the Council or a Constable upon request
at any reasonable time.

L. The licensee shall exercise all due diligence and take 3l reasonable steps to ensurs

that the terms and conditions imposed on the licence are observed and complied with at all
tirmes.

FageSaf &
ASM3s IEEN

Page 19



APPENDIX B

VNN .V Ny 4.7
7 X |

WY\

7EP
&7~ Fo W
4"'1‘?‘1-1
P I’E/ . 4 ‘h\"-

M
“m-m‘-n B 10008 141 T _TJ\

e BLACKWELL'S
— e

1152 noabn prind a1 A4, Sonda S04 . 173004 M e rm

Page 20



APPENDIX C

2= | LNOAVT HOOTd ANNOHO ONILSIXT

o GGG L e 103 ADHITEINE DNILEXZ

Gy Gl DL i

WY L TR0 WS

T S WO DL DN LD

ETOBARNAE OL AIM

Page 21




Page 22



APPENDIX D

R T~ ol
3

np.uﬁrau.m.ﬂ_u__ L I-3=18~

=r. 3 ..D.rrm_ﬁ. L
11 [aT=12 o .
S b — . S5pta ’
b ey j=d
A2 of Lhe buiid SR
Sl T = )
S

WAooy Sl rgnkly Teod
T’

“EMNTRAL S e
__,I.H_.._..|q..sl.ml.__| ..m_ﬁ_._.ﬂ..
Plulvr.f;lu.n_.ﬂmlfr

=2 | -

—hernb T rS e, o

,_I..r.._._.u-m

Page 23



Code OF Condezt for Castamers

¥

Flensz remember wo operte a chollasge 21 palicy. 1T yon are lucky enpaph io
loek unilor 21 years of age you will red photographic ID to prove you aee over
I!:mrnlnlPhshnwwuuri:unmpuwﬁhlngllm,m;mm
Prravie i eard

All customens will be required 0o pays lived entrance fee oa the door an arrival,
Prices are eluarly displayed at s entmnce bo the venue, Endrance foe's are £10pp
every night of the week.

Customers mus sheoo 10 e dooss code which 18 smanbcasal. My

bu traimers nre pesmitiod as long as they are cleantsmart tmisers. Mo workwear

pormnilted,
Mo hats are 0 be wom inside tho club, Customers will be askesd t6 remove hats
befors cnbering the club and asked to mlrmin from wearlng than ence inside,

¥ Mobile phomea must nol be used insidi the club, Deorstaff will a2k customers to

switch thelr phoaes off whes entering he club sd only vss them calside te

Mo plsilos or videos are to be tnken indde the chib withoul prior pemilzsion fom
oment

inasing .
¥ Thero is stritoly no proposlsting tse daicers, Customers must nel divalge

¥Y¥ w v

W

pebephome numibers, resddentinl addrassss, sl sdresses or oihicr informstioe thl
may facilitote the fusther contsot betven castomer md dancer.

Ceneral Chumbers operses a strbit i tesching vule, Any oustomers that toschers,
gl strokes, frondles or embraoces e damssr will rensoved from (e veme.
Ploass he aware that mndom searches niy bo caried oul by seeurity safT or

manapemes,
Anybody who srives al ibe club dmnk or behaving i sa incossidernte mumner

will be refused endry,

Manngement reserve (e right to ramainselective snd refiase eniry.

The elul opomies a zero ioleramcs drugs policy, Amyone foursd 1o ba inking,

supplying, hiving drugs om them or belisved fo be under the Infulence of dnps

will be asked to leave nnd reported to the palics.

Please heaware thul CCTV cameres nre netalled theoughout the club snd dance

ansas for the prolection of both stadf and eestomers.

Privvaile damces inclede teyplesn'fially noodt dnncers, A sandard change of £20 fally

muile or £10 topless per person i for onedaace and 1s paid directly 1o the dancer,
ittt

e dance ie only song approx 4
Custamers musl pemain seated md fally sloshod during darces. The club aperates

n girict piv bouching palicy.

P Customers must leave the dance aren imiwadiatiey afier the private dance hea

fmishad.
Managament reserve the dght 1o stap a dmee at any time.

Page 24

APPENDIX E

e e e 1 e



CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DANCERS

REEDBED LTD T/A CENTRAL CHAMBERS
9-44 ST STOMIENS STREEY
BRESTON E51 1EE

Code O Conduct For Do Danoer Coatrack

APPENDIX F

AFPPENDX F

Al ke mes Rav: & valid fores ol phets [D thal mansgement shal take 2 copy of t keep mith 2l
dancy comlracls le prove s mestty end sge. M nos UK peddents wil eeid e prodete
dacasrmsiation Hut proves their ebpitabty to work iy the U Only @ difdng boonoe or pasgort will by

resyunsl.

nnﬂ?«ﬂmnhmnmmmmmmu
releant offerscn, Yiou will be requined e bowe o CRB ched dene by prive D -
Dwnoers Wil be repained o pay @ P Do cul asas avening that they work, This les b wenable 25
B0 Fiphis the dul & quisd amd we do net chargn Ba dencers srihing o work. Monagerest will
i hisw biry B swening hes boen and Ben dedde how mech e esaing foes shall b The
megcdrmum hoaee fee for esch rikght B SurcThor B4, B £50, Sad (1300 & 3 wiesk nadice will bes e
o any norease in hose fees,
Danoers will recdve: pariressl From cudomeny for ssch dans thal they perfom. Dance prioss are 2
ared G nil b Wtwred by the dancer sk ary Hme, Angone Tound i Be dhangisg mors o e for
m“h:'nﬁﬂuu.!m £80 and rulﬁ oay iSh ik e et ¥

) ae a dana b EHL Uniess vy special promiston et
By ST b Mieing,
Danars mill be permited #o pign 0 g1 the swt of ey chift. Doroes misl inform
whin they kre e premises 53 That managemest can sign them oif for o salety. Falore 10 o =
willl reeut in Serpliroany aoion
Wehyan reguasied. you My be reguised b da & ‘shop window’ or pole dance on e shage sies. The
Mhmmuhﬂmmmm;mahdﬂm

b swaring.

Gapd cosrkact st be mainisned st ol imes, and ol sl st b labes o svoid iejury b pescs
or damage B progerty. Al robnant eslh s salsty proossdunes mest be Ioiosed asd Sessbed L2
hexs 3 Bedth ared sty slolerest of pdicy Lhat meal b rasd,
HAubenod partiopalion B dricly prohbited and oustarors st fenes dithed and sostes ot ol
Timad durirg darces,
Comirmens mist aem b e dubs sl e Souching policy, Danrers o requined o repert ol
NGO0ERLs 35 2000 ik reidasdbie pracinal. Al cusiomers who mave bickan Bk iy will be reemoeed
o e Gt ireruachintely. Danoers who do not report Soch indgents shall mosk disspinary acton.
Purficrrmence off sage s anly permitied when Cuslomens s saaind i the desigrobed Gance Snea
Dencers mes take paymeer far ol Sencm up ot Bub most not be In a siabe of sidhss when
FECERATY el I the cuslomar sl M m dolow on dence. The dancer At hire har nipples
and gerilnkisin coavred Before baiing peyrrent.
M2 saee acts whall Rebe place or contact of & sesal mabure whth s neronably be asamed b be
Wmﬂmmmmﬂmﬂrmhm.mmn.u
rondact bebasen the DemoserSaner aid Badweon T dencerfosbomer, Decers ive nal semitied
b Hoivdhe, ks, Caress o embracs any castome, Dances ae goolilited [rom kisang the cestomer o
the o of the performanos on the check. Ouly Band 10 band conbact is soopiabls 55 & Band ke
Lo 181 P skt the mad of the dence is siceptable &s o thank pou gashure srd hand bo b parprment ot
the st of the perimisoe wieh ki plisg prpsent

Page 25



a Hﬂ'ﬁ,ﬂﬂh‘ﬂ,mﬂﬁ'ﬂhﬂhﬁﬂd“mﬂpﬂbﬂmhmd
any Bess, onlecd eriplopd ai Oesbad Chambers ST, Escepl with prir permission of e

AT

o 'Whn niot perfoming, dencers must rot anler the other Romeed areas n 4 idats of undress

u Dances sk not deskpe Sebons numbers, residential eddness, emel address or other nkonmatken
Rl maw Paciitate Turileer tonlact bubween onlomers and denoes o Wos wesa

0 m_mwmgm-.puhmwmmtuunﬂmu
dancore wha have videad i chis and e clesss e costemin.

o [DarcEs mist anly ise the designasied hollsts sad chaaging sres proviinl. They sre ok permised 1o
shars loliets or waghisg Nclie: el mar ors of the puiiic.

o Clarren e celate Ao cosiosii O 06w bads, and shouid nol S emaed together, sven

R TS
n Damers wst noily diter one of e brssses of & membsr of $o door et when Lhey leres e
ErOaies. - Ths ks §a0 your v safoky and pau wil be raquired 55 Eige 0uf (F lerwing bedors clasng
s

,mmmwwhmnu&mmudwmhﬂmmh
premises immedaiedy, The company opershes g reen Inlsrance o dnigs and ey denoer fousd B2 b
o g o destribating sy form of drugs will e instankly demissed ond reporied o the police,

o Banckin smarch polickei e corried oul by indisgenl od saceiity.

o Al sre anf mmgloyed 4 ne resposd bl ks Higir s PAYE anid Tax.

Pt bt v Tht Thie rrefority of Hhese sestrictions s laid down as part of the conditions of the loence
aral e Frimido mol ble in ary Wiy, shape of derme N ary dances is ensore of amy of Hhese
prEadures o ioence pleass ipmak o @ Pl of maragersenl Thes B & oopy o 06 A
SEV losnoe in &he changing roars whidh mest be resd snd endensdond.

& copy ol kb combect hes lo be kepl by Resdbed Lbd dor 12 manths alfter the lasl provision of
asherisnment by B discer and producsd to aey oouncll ofidal oF polos offkor on reguit.

1 tarew read and usderstarad Ty asome andBlore and sion bl sooig? Beive oo

Frint Mame Syrabure - -
[ gl Baith

Tl Buimsner

Dt i Db Endir

Page 26



APPENDIX G

SUPFPLEMENT AR

0 REMEW A SEY LICENCE FOR CENTRAL CHAMEBERS,
B=11 8T \:d

i THE BUSINESS AND ITS OPERATION

JE The Applicant operates a Challenge 21 Policy.  All custorsers who the Managemeni
congider b ook under the age of 21 will have 10 produce phatographic 10 6o prove that they
are |8 vears or older. The Applicant only aceepis a UK Driving Licencs, Pasaport or Prove
It Card as valid forms of identification. There is a stnct rule that if there is oo identification
tkere is no eniry. Chollenges 21 signs will be disployed ai the entrance to the venue,

Mi Manapement will monitor all CCTY images by way of several monitors kept behind ihe
bar. The OUTV shall menitor the autside of the venue, inside the public har area, inside the
danee arca, behind e bar, the staire down o the tollets and alse stall aeas. All
Manapement have recedved tmining on the recarding system and will be oble te show all
authorised bodies the required imapes.  If such auborised bodies requine a copy of the
images to lake away with them this can be done from the premises by Management. Images
will be copied on 10 a memory stick that the authorised bodies can fake awsay with them.
COTY footage wall be kept for a minimum of 30 days,

IH  The proposed relevant entertainment is full mude lnpdancing, full node sirip fease an stage,
and fially nude live stage shoows ard fully nude poledancing.

4, GEMERAL MANAGEMENT OF PREMISES

44 All dancers will be briefed en the Code of Conduct for performess by Managemeni
Dancers will sign o declamtion that they hove read and understond all licence camdilions
and code of comduct for performers.  Monlioring will be by Management amd Securty
patredling the dance aren ot regular intervals and monitoring dancers on CCTY.
Enforcement will be as per owr disciplinary procedure which includes two warnings and il a
third offence is committed we will end the dancer's Contract at the Club,

A Customers will be made aware of the Code of Conduct by means of signage and o briefing
from Security before entering the premises.  Monitoring will be by Management and
Security patrolling the Club amd monitoring images on CCTY, Customers in breach of this
Code of Conduct will be asked to beave e premiscs. Signs will aleo be displayed inzide
the premises to remind all customers of the Code of Conduct and specifically of the no
coniact rubs,

A ADDITIONAL DETAILS

58 The Applicant has been runimiong Cemtral Chambers as a Lapdancing Club for over 14 vears.
Manapement are very experienced in nanning this type of venue and have always worked
very closely with the Local Awmboerity and Police to neake sure that all terms of the Licences
are mel. The Applicant also poes beyond what is required of them o ensure that the
premisesizs well run and performers and staff bave a safe amd enjovable wodking

enviranmeni.

Page 27



	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
	5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISONS) ACT 1982<br/>APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE MADE BY REEDBED LTD IN RESPECT OF PREMISES TRADING AS CENTRAL CHAMBERS, 9-11 ST STEPHENS STREET, BRISTOL, BS1 1EE.
	05.1 Appendices Central Chambers 27.03.17


